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Please find attached our report on Educational Service District No. 123’s financial statements and 
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We are issuing this report in order to provide information on the District’s financial condition. 
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Pat McCarthy 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 

Educational Service District No. 123 

September 1, 2017 through August 31, 2018 

 

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 

The results of our audit of Educational Service District No. 123 are summarized below in 

accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

 

Financial Statements 

We issued an unmodified opinion on the fair presentation of the financial statements of each major 

fund and the aggregate remaining fund information in accordance with accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting: 

 Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal 

control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

 Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material 

weaknesses. 

We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the 

District. 

 

Federal Awards 

Internal Control over Major Programs: 

 Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal 

control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

 Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material 

weaknesses. 
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We issued an unmodified opinion on the District’s compliance with requirements applicable to its 

major federal program. 

We reported no findings that are required to be disclosed in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a). 

 

Identification of Major Federal Programs: 

The following program was selected as a major program in our audit of compliance in accordance 

with the Uniform Guidance.   

CFDA No. Program or Cluster Title 

84.287 Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers 

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed by 

the Uniform Guidance, was $750,000. 

The District qualified as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance. 

 

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

None reported. 

 

SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED 

COSTS 

None reported. 
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Educational Service District 123 

Mr. Darcy Weisner 
Superintendent  

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

 

Educational Service District No. 123 

September 1, 2017 through August 31, 2018 

This schedule presents the status of federal findings reported in prior audit periods.  

Audit Period: 

September 1, 2016 – August 31, 2017 

Report Ref. No.: 

1021426 

Finding Ref. No.: 

2017-001 

Finding Caption: 

The District did not obtain an actuarial study to determine its other post-employment benefit 

liabilities in accordance with government accounting standards. 

Background:  

District board members, state and federal agencies, and the public rely on the information 

included in the financial statements and report to make decisions. District management is 

responsible for designing and following internal controls that provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial reporting. 

Our audit identified a significant deficiency in internal controls over financial reporting that 

hindered the District’s ability to produce reliable financial statements. 

The District did not research or consider the accounting and financial reporting related to its 

provision of other post-employment benefits in accordance with Government Accounting 

Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45. 

Status of Corrective Action: (check one) 

☒ Fully 

Corrected 

☐ Partially 

Corrected 
☐ Not Corrected 

☐ Finding is considered no 

longer valid 

Corrective Action Taken: 

For the 2017-18 fiscal year, GASB Statement No. 45 was replaced by GASB Statement No. 75 

which has different criteria for the reporting of other post-employment benefits (OPEB).   

The District has fully implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 

Statement No. 75 – Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment 

Benefits Other Than Pension for the 2017-2018 fiscal year.  The District commissioned an 

actuarial study, obtained an actuarial report and reported the related liabilities, net 
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inflows/outflows, expense, disclosures and required supplementary information in its 

statements for the year ending August 31, 2018.   

Furthermore, the District collaborates with the other Educational Service Districts in an 

intentional process to evaluate and review new and revised accounting and reporting 

pronouncements in order to continue to comply with generally accepted accounting principles. 

This process not only includes all the state’s educational service districts, but also the Office 

of Superintendent of Public Instruction, and the Washington State Auditor’s Office.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND 

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 

Educational Service District No. 123 

September 1, 2017 through August 31, 2018 

 

Board of Directors 

Educational Service District No. 123 

Pasco, Washington 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of each 

major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Educational Service District No. 123, 

as of and for the year ended August 31, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, 

which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report 

thereon dated May 14, 2019.  As discussed in Note 14 to the financial statements, during the year 

ended August 31, 2018, the District implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 

Pensions. 

The District has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis information that governmental 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America has determined is 

necessary to supplement, although not required to be part of, the basic financial statements.  Our 

opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s 

internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 

statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s 

internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s 

internal control. 
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A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 

or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 

material misstatement of the District's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 

corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 

deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 

to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 

of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 

material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 

not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  

However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free 

from material misstatement, we performed tests of the District’s compliance with certain 

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 

have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, 

providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 

accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required 

to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.   

 

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

District’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed 

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control 

and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.  However,  
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this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.  It also serves to 

disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess government 

operations. 

 

Pat McCarthy 

State Auditor 

Olympia, WA 

 

May 14, 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR 

EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

 

Educational Service District No. 123 

September 1, 2017 through August 31, 2018 

 

Board of Directors 

Educational Service District No. 123 

Pasco, Washington 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 

PROGRAM 

We have audited the compliance of Educational Service District No. 123, with the types of 

compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 

Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District’s major 

federal programs for the year ended August 31, 2018.  The District’s major federal programs are 

identified in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.   

 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 

conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District’s major federal 

programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We 

conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 

United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 

Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 

requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  

Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
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referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.  

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance with those 

requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 

circumstances.    

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 

federal program.  Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the District’s compliance.  

 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program  

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 

federal programs for the year ended August 31, 2018.   

 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE  

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 

control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning 

and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the District’s internal control over 

compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each 

major federal program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 

program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 

Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 

over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's 

internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 

over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 

their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 

compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal 

control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 

compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 

compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 

a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 

requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 

over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 

first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 

that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies 

in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material 

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 

our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 

requirements of the Uniform Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 

purpose.  However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.  It 

also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess 

government operations. 

 

Pat McCarthy 

State Auditor 

Olympia, WA 

 

May 14, 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Educational Service District No. 123 

September 1, 2017 through August 31, 2018 

 

Board of Directors 

Educational Service District No. 123 

Pasco, Washington 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each major fund and the aggregate 

remaining fund information of Educational Service District No. 123, as of and for the year ended 

August 31, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 

District’s basic financial statements as listed on page 18.  

  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 

preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 

of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that 

we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement.   

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
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relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.  Accordingly, we 

express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 

policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 

well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinions. 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 

the respective financial position of each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information 

of Educational Service District No. 123, as of August 31, 2018, and the respective changes in 

financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance 

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

Matters of Emphasis 

As discussed in Note 14 to the financial statements, in 2018, the District adopted new accounting 

guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and 

Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.  Our opinion is not 

modified with respect to this matter. 

 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required 

supplementary information listed on page 18 be presented to supplement the basic financial 

statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 

the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 

reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or 

historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 

information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 

information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 

inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
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basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 

information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 

an opinion or provide any assurance.  

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis information that 

governmental accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to 

be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such missing information, although not 

a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 

Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 

statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  Our opinion on the basic 

financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 

 

Supplementary and Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 

collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements.  The accompanying Schedule of 

Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by 

Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 

Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  This schedule 

is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of 

management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 

records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the 

auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 

procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 

accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 

statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 

generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, 

in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

 

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING 

STANDARDS 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 14, 

2019 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 

of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and 

other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 

over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 

opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral  
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part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 

District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

Pat McCarthy 

State Auditor 

Olympia, WA 

 

May 14, 2019 
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FINANCIAL SECTION 

 

Educational Service District No. 123 

September 1, 2017 through August 31, 2018 

 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Statement of Net Position – All funds – 2018 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – 2018 

Statement of Cash Flows – 2018 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position – Fiduciary – 2018  

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position – Agency Funds – 2018 

Notes to Financial Statements – 2018 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Risk Pools Information – 2018 

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability – PERS 1, SERS 2/3, TRS 1, 

TRS 2/3 – 2018 

Schedule of District Contributions – PERS 1, SERS 2/3, TRS 1, TRS 2/3 – 2018 

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios – 2018 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY AND OTHER INFORMATION  

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards – 2018 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards – 2018 
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 OPERATING 
 WORKERS 

COMPENSATION FUND 

 UNEMPLOYMENT 

FUND 
 TOTAL ALL FUNDS 

OPERATING REVENUES

Local Sources 1,142,940.92$                   1,142,940.92$                

State Sources 4,414,927.30$                   4,414,927.30$                

Allotment 628,323.87$                       628,323.87$                   

Federal Sources 3,488,497.98$                   3,488,497.98$                

Cooperative Programs 3,283,882.92$                   3,283,882.92$                

Other Programs 1,951,426.86$                   1,951,426.86$                

Member Assessments/Contributions 4,246,323.70$                (13,372.95)$                    4,232,950.75$                

Supplemental Member Assessments -$                                 

Other Operating Revenue 33,525.57$                     33,525.57$                     

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 14,909,999.85$                 4,279,849.27$                (13,372.95)$                    19,176,476.17$             

OPERATING EXPENSES

General Operations and Administration 2,120,437.86$                   749,319.42$                   36,053.72$                     2,905,811.00$                

Instructional Support Programs 11,380,317.34$                 11,380,317.34$             

Non Instructional Support Programs 1,187,136.12$                   1,187,136.12$                

Incurred Loss/Loss Adjustment Expenses

Paid on Current Losses -$                                 

Change in Loss Reserves (338,000.00)$                  (338,000.00)$                  

Unallocated Loss Adjustment Expenses

Paid Unallocated Loss Adjustment Expenses -$                                 

Change in Unallocated Loss Reserves 6,000.00$                        6,000.00$                        

Excess/Reinsurance Premiums 146,437.00$                   146,437.00$                   

Professional Fees 36,050.00$                     36,050.00$                     

Labor & Industries Assessments 369,587.30$                   369,587.30$                   

Depreciation/Depletion 253,043.72$                       253,043.72$                   

Other Operating Expenses 1,695,574.51$                1,695,574.51$                

   Pension Expense from change in Net Pension Liability (435,812.00)$                     (435,812.00)$                  

   OPEB Expense from change in Net OPEB Liability 248,135.00$                       248,135.00$                   

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 14,753,258.04$                 2,664,968.23$                36,053.72$                     17,454,279.99$             

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 156,741.81$                       1,614,881.04$                (49,426.67)$                    1,722,196.18$                

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest and Investment Income 3,848.50$                           168,351.31$                   49,426.67$                     221,626.48$                   

Interest Expense and Related Charges (146,533.66)$                     (146,533.66)$                  

Lease Income -$                                 

Gains (Losses) on Capital Asset Disposition -$                                 

Change in Joint Venture (297,797.22)$                     (297,797.22)$                  

Change in Compensated Absences -$                                 

Other Nonoperating Revenues -$                                 

Other Nonoperating Expenses -$                                 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) (440,482.38)$                     168,351.31$                   49,426.67$                     (222,704.40)$                  

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OTHER ITEMS (283,740.57)$                     1,783,232.35$                -$                                 1,499,491.78$                

Extraordinary Items -$                                 

Special Items -$                                 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION (283,740.57)$                     1,783,232.35$                -$                                 1,499,491.78$                

NET POSITION - BEGINNING BALANCE 50,290.65$                         6,262,671.35$                6,312,962.00$                

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle (1,763,237.00)$                  (1,763,237.00)$              

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT -$                                 

NET POSITION - ENDING BALANCE (1,996,686.92)$                  8,045,903.70$                -$                                 6,049,216.78$                

Educational Service District #123

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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ADDITIONS
 DELTA HIGH ASB 

Contributions

Employer

Members

Total Contributions -                               

Investment Earnings

Interest 32.59                           

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments

Total Investment Earnings 32.59                           

Other Additions

TOTAL ADDITIONS 32.59                           

DEDUCTIONS

Distribution to Pool Participants 23,457.63                    

Refunds of Contributions

Administrative Expenses

Other Payments in Accordance with Trust Agreement

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 23,457.63                    

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (23,425.04)                   

NET POSITION - BEGINNING 23,425.04                    

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

NET POSITION - ENDING -                               

Educational Service District #123

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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 COMPENSATED 

ABSENCES 

 WSIPC {ESD 123 

ONLY} 
ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 23,683.31$                

Investments 632,186.34$              5,997,135.49$           

Accounts Receivable 53,904.24$                

Assets Used in Operations
TOTAL ASSETS 709,773.89$              5,997,135.49$           

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 535,037.77$              

Program Refunds Payable to JV Participants

Deposits (from school districts) 174,736.12$              5,997,135.49$           
TOTAL LIABILITIES 709,773.89$              5,997,135.49$           

Educational Service District #123

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - AGENCY FUNDS

AUGUST 31, 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accounting policies of Educational Service District No. 123 (“the District”) were developed 
under authority of the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction. Except where noted as 
exceptions, the rules of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) are the basis for 
accounting and financial reporting in the District. The following summary of the more significant 
accounting policies is presented to assist the reader in interpreting the financial statements and 
other data in this report. These policies should be viewed as an integral part of the 
accompanying financial statements. 
 

Reporting Entity 
 

Educational Service District No. 123 is one of nine municipal corporations of the State of 
Washington organized pursuant to Title 28A Revised Code of Washington (RCW) for the 
purpose of (1) providing cooperative and informational services to local school districts; (2) 
assisting the state superintendent of public instruction and the state board of education in 
the performance of their respective statutory or constitutional duties; and (3) providing 
services to school districts to assure equal educational opportunities. 
 
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, management has considered all 
potential component units in defining the reporting entity. Based on the standards set by 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14, there were no 
component units of ESD 123. The District is a separate legal entity and is fiscally 
independent from all other units of government. 
 
The District serves 23 school districts in Adams, Asotin, Benton, Columbia, Franklin, 
Garfield and Walla Walla counties.  Oversight responsibility for the District's operations is 
vested with the Board of Directors who are elected by the school directors of the educational 
service district, one from each of nine educational service district board-member districts. 
Management of the District is appointed by and accountable to the Board of Directors. Fiscal 
responsibility, including budget authority, the power to operate cooperatives, set fees for 
services and issue debt consistent with the provisions of state statutes, rests with the Board.  
For financial reporting purposes, the District’s financial statements include all fund entities 
that are controlled by the District's Board of Directors and managed by the administrative 
staff, unless noted hereafter. 

 
Basis of Accounting and Reporting 

 
The District’s accounting policies, as reflected in the accompanying financial statements, 
conform to the Accounting Manual for Educational Service Districts, prescribed by the Office 
of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI). This manual allows for a practice that differs 
from generally accepted accounting principles in the following manner:  (1) The 
Management Discussion and Analysis is not required. 
 
The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
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related cash flows.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all 
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
The District reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 
The Operating fund is the ESD’s primary fund.  It accounts for all financial resources of the 
ESD that are not reported in the following funds. 
 
The Unemployment Compensation fund accounts for the collection of premium from 
members of the fund and the related payment of associated claims and expenses. 
 
The Workers' Compensation fund accounts for workers' compensation payroll taxes 
collected from members, and the payment of associated claims, assessments and 
expenses. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing 
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principle ongoing operations. 
Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of providing services, 
administrative expenses, depreciation on capital assets, and gain/loss on sale of assets. 
Grants used to finance operations and expenses not related to the provision of District 
services are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
 
In addition, the District reports the following fund types: 
 
The Compensated Absences Pool Agency Fund accounts for assets held by the district to 
provide a funding mechanism for members to pay for the cash-out of liabilities for 
compensated absences when employees of member districts leave service or retire. 
 
The Washington Information Processing Cooperative Agency Fund accounts for assets held 
by the district to operate the joint venture on behalf of the members of the cooperative. 
 
The Delta High School ASB Fund was established to hold in trust those monies collected by 
the Delta High School Associated Student Body for their use.  The Educational Service District 
#123 was the fiscal agent for Delta High School until October 2017. 
 
Trust or agency funds are used to account for assets held by the district in a trustee or 
agency capacity. 

 
Assets, Liabilities, and Equity 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The Franklin County Treasurer is the ex-officio treasurer for the District. In this capacity, the 
county treasurer receives daily deposits and transacts investments on behalf of the District.  
On August 31, 2018, the treasurer was holding $148,820 in short-term residual investments 
of surplus cash.  This amount is classified on the statement of net position as cash and cash 
equivalents. 
 
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid 
investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash and cash equivalents. 
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Deposits and Investments – See Note 2 
 

Receivables 
For the operating fund, accounts and contracts receivable represent the value of goods and 
services provided and invoiced to clients at fiscal year-end.  For remaining proprietary and 
agency funds, the amounts represent balances due from clients within thirty days of payroll 
dates. 
 
All receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Uncollectible accounts are 
written off on an annual basis. 

 
Prepaid Items 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in the financial statements. 

 
Inventory 
The District does not maintain material amounts of inventory. 

 
Capital Assets and Depreciation – See Note 3 

 
Compensated Absences 
Employees earn vacation leave at varying rates in accordance with District policy. Vacation 
is payable upon termination.  
 
Employees earn sick leave at a rate of 12 days per year and may accumulate an unlimited 
sick leave balance. Under the provisions of Chapter 28A.400.210 RCW, sick leave 
accumulated by District employees is reimbursed at death or retirement at the rate of 1 day 
for each 4 days of accrued leave, limited to 180 accrued days. This chapter also provides for 
an annual buy-back of an amount up to the maximum annual accumulations of 12 days. For 
buy-back purposes, employees may accumulate such leave to a maximum of 192 days, 
including annual accumulation, as of December 31 of each year. 

 
The balance reported in the statement of net position as of August 31, 2018, represents the 
aggregate amount of vacation and sick leave payable for all eligible employees of the 
District.  

 
Other Accrued Liabilities 
These accounts consist of accrued wages and accrued employee benefits. 

 
Long Term Debt – See Note 5 

 
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
The ESD has adopted GASB 68 for the year ended August 31, 2015.  GASB 68 requires the 
ESD to recognize as deferred outflows or inflows on the Statement of Net Position their 
proportionate share of the State Department of Retirement System’s deferred income or 
expenses items that will be recognized over a number of years.  These items are presented 
on the Statement of Net Position and will impact the future calculations of the retirement 
system’s pension funding status. 
 
The ESD adopted GASB 75 for the year ended August 31, 2018.  GASB 75 requires the 
ESD to recognize as deferred outflows or inflows of resources on the Statement of Net 
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Position.  These changes include differences between expected and actual experience, 
changes in assumptions, and differences between expected and actual earning on plan 
investments. 

 
Note 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
All of the District’s bank balances are insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation 
(FDIC) or by collateral held in a multiple financial institution collateral pool administered by the 
Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC). 
 
Statutes authorize the District to invest in (1) securities, certificates, notes, bonds, short-term 
securities, or other obligations of the United States, and (2) deposits in any state bank or trust 
company, national banking association, stock savings bank, mutual savings bank, savings and 
loan association, and any branch bank engaged in banking in the state in accordance with RCW 
30.04.300 if the institution has been approved by the Public Deposit Protection Commission to 
hold public deposits and has segregated eligible collateral having a value of not less than its 
maximum liability. 
 
As of August 31, 2018, the District had the following investments: 
 

Investment Maturity Fair Value 
Local Government Investment Pool Daily 16,836,368 
County Investment Pool   
Certificate of Deposit   
Money Market Account   
   
   
Total Investments  16,836,368 
 
Credit Risk 

 
The Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is considered extremely low risk. The pool is 
operated in a manner consistent with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Rule 2a-7 
of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Rule 2a-7 funds are limited to high quality 
obligations with limited maximum and average maturities, the effect of which is to minimize 
both market and credit risk.  The pool’s portfolio is made up of high quality, highly liquid 
securities, and its relatively short average maturity reduces the pool’s price sensitivity to 
market interest rate fluctuations. The pool also has a strong degree of asset diversification 
to minimize risk and maintain adequate rates of return. 
 
The pool is not insured or guaranteed by any government; therefore, maintenance of 
principal is not fully insured. The LGIP does not have a credit rating.  
 
The pool is managed and operated by the Office of the State Treasurer for the State of 
Washington. The LGIP publishes an annual report, which is on the Internet at the 
Treasurer’s Web site (http://tre.wa.gov). As of the most recent report date, fair value equaled 
amortized cost. It is the policy of the LGIP to permit participants to withdraw their 
investments on a daily basis; therefore, the District’s investment balance in the pool is equal 
to fair value. 

 
Custodial Credit Risk  
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Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of the counterparty to an 
investment transaction, the District would not be able to recover the value of the investment 
or collateral securities. Of the District’s total cash and investment position of $16,985,188, 
$16,985,188 is exposed to custodial credit risk because the investments held by the LGIP 
are not insured or guaranteed by any government. The District does not have a policy for 
custodial credit risk. 

 
Concentration of Credit Risk 

 
The District does not have investments in any one issuer that represents five percent or 
more of total investments. 

 
 

Interest Rate Risk 
 

As of August 31, 2018, the LGIP’s average duration was less than one year. As a means of 
limiting its exposure to rising interest rates, securities purchased in the pool must have a 
final maturity, or weighted average life, no longer than five years. While the pool’s market 
value is calculated on a monthly basis, unrealized gains and losses are not distributed to 
participants.  The pool distributes earnings monthly using an amortized cost methodology. 

 
Note 3: CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital assets, which include property, facilities, and large equipment, are capitalized at total 
acquisition cost, provided such cost exceeds $50,000 and has an expected useful life of more 
than five years. Property, facilities, and large equipment that are purchased using Federal 
money are subject to capitalization if the acquisition cost is over $5,000. Depreciation is 
recorded on all depreciable capital assets on a straight-line basis over the following estimated 
useful lives: 

Asset Years 
Vehicles 5–10 
Equipment 5–20 
Buildings and structures 10–40 
Land improvements 5–40 

 
Major expenses for capital assets, including capital leases and major repairs that extend the 
useful life of an asset are capitalized.  Assets under the capitalization threshold, maintenance, 
repairs, and minor renewals are accounted for as expenses when incurred. 
 
Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2018, was as follows: 
 
 Beginning 

Balance 
9/1/2017 

 
Increases 

 
Decreases 

Ending 
Balance 

8/31/2018 
Capital assets not being depreciated:     
 Land $ 242,500 $ $ $ 242,500 
 Construction in Progress 0   0 
Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 

242,500   242,500 
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Depreciable capital assets:     
 Buildings 6,013,824   6,013,824 
 Improvements other than 

buildings 
    

 Equipment 187,809   187,809 
 Other     
Total depreciable capital assets 6,201,633   6,201,633 
     
Less accumulated depreciation for:     
 Buildings 1,534,232 233,291  1,767,523 
 Improvements other than 

buildings 
    

 Equipment 13,168 19,753  32,921 
 Other     
Total accumulated depreciation 1,547,400 253,044  1,800,444 
     
Total depreciable assets, net     
 Total assets, net $4,896,733 $ 253,044 $ $4,643,689 

 
During fiscal year 2018, the District capitalized $ 0 of net interest costs for funds borrowed to 
finance the construction of capital assets. 
 
Construction Commitments 
The District has no active construction projects as of August 31, 2018. The projects include 
professional development center (PDC) building expansion. At fiscal year-end, the District’s 
commitments with contractors were as follows: 

 
Project Spent to Date Remaining Commitment 
  

 

   
   

 
Of the total committed balance above, the District will be required to raise $ 0 in future financing. 
 
Note 4: SHORT-TERM DEBT 
 
Short-term activities for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2018, were as follows: 
 

 
Debt 

Beginning 
Balance 
9/1/2017 

 
Increases 

 
Decreases 

Ending 
Balance 
8/31/2018 

 $ 0.00 $ $  $ 0.00 
     

 
Note 5: LONG-TERM DEBT, LIABILITIES AND LEASES 
 

Long-Term Debt 
 

The District issues general obligation bonds and other debt instruments to finance the 
purchase of main office building and acquisition and construction of the professional 
development center.  The following is a summary of long-term debt instruments of the 
District for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2018: 
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Purpose Maturity 

Range 
Interest 
Rate 

Original 
Amount 

Amount of 
Installments 

Professional Development Building 
Expansion 

 
12/2034 

 
3.95% 

 
3,600,000.00 

53,000 to 
292,000 

 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as 
follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Ending 
August 31 

Principal Interest 

2019 53,000.00 141,153.25 
2020 163,000.00 136,887.25 
2021 170,000.00 130,310,50 
2022 176,000.00 123,477.00 
2023 – 2035 3,038,000.00 844,944.50 

 
Operating Leases 

 
The District is committed under various leases for space and equipment. All leases are 
considered operating leases for accounting purposes because the District does not acquire 
interests in the property.  Lease expenses for the year ended August 31, 2018, totaled 
$13,418.  Future minimum rental commitments for these leases are as follows: 
 
 

Fiscal Year Ending 
August 31 

Amount 

2019 10,802 
2020 10,802 
2021  5,276 

 
 

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 
 

During the fiscal year ended August 31, 2018, the following changes occurred in long-term 
liabilities: 
 

 
 Beginning 

Balance 
9/1/2017 

Additions Reductions 
Ending 
Balance 
8/31/2018 

Due Within 
One Year 

Bonds Payable $3,767,160.74 $0 $167,160.74 $3,600,000.00 $53,000.00 
Capital Leases      
Compensated 
Absences (unfunded 
portion) 

 
 

237,244.36 

  
 

6,120.37 

 
 

231,123.99 

 
 

N/A 
Claims and 
Judgments 

     

OPEB      
Net Pension Liability 
TRS 1 

 
747,146 

 
63,514 

  
810,659 

 
N/A 

Net Pension Liability 
TRS 2/3 

 
219,031 

  
99,463 

 
119,568 

 
N/A 
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Net Pension Liability 
SERS 2/3 

 
934,952 

  
440,577 

 
494,375 

 
N/A 

Net Pension Liability 
PERS 1 

 
1,566,017 

  
270,857 

 
1,295,160 

 
N/A 

Total Long-Term 
Liabilities 

 
$7,471,551.10 

 
$63,514 

 

 
$984,178.11 

 
$6,550,886.99 

 
$ 53,000.00 

 
Note 6: PENSION PLANS 
 

General Information 
 

The Washington State Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the 
primary government of the state of Washington, prepares a stand-alone comprehensive 
annual financial report (CAFR) that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for each pension plan. The pension plan’s basic financial 
statement is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. The measurement date of 
the pension plans is June 30. Benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
For the purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of pension plans administered by DRS and additions to/deductions 
from the plans’ net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported 
by the plans.  
 
Detailed information about the pension plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued DRS CAFR. Copies of the report may be obtained by contacting the 
Washington State Department of Retirement Systems, P.O. Box 48380, Olympia, WA  
98504-8380; or online at http://www.drs.wa.gov./administrations/annual-report.   

 
Membership Participation  

 
Substantially all of the ESD full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of 
the following three contributory, multi-employer, cost-sharing statewide retirement systems 
managed by DRS: Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS), Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (PERS) and School Employees’ Retirement System (SERS).  
 
Membership participation by retirement plan as of June 30, 2018, was as follows: 
 

 
Plan 

Retirees and 
Beneficiaries 

Receiving Benefits 

Inactive Plan Members 
Entitled to but not yet 

Receiving Benefits 

 
Active Plan Members 

PERS 1 47,037 539 1,986 
SERS 2 9,171 6,050 27,786 
SERS 3 8,866 8,678 34,930 
TRS 1 33,460 147 497 
TRS 2 5,453 2,617 20,518 
TRS 3 11,960 8,735 55,117 
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The latest actuarial valuation date for all plans was June 30, 2018 
Source:  Washington Office of the State Actuary 
 

Membership & Plan Benefits  
 

Certificated employees are members of TRS. Classified employees are members of PERS 
(if Plan 1) or SERS. Plan 1 under the TRS and PERS programs are defined benefit pension 
plans whose members joined the system on or before September 30, 1977. TRS 1 and 
PERS 1 are closed to new entrants. 
 
TRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three separate 
plans for membership purposes: Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans and Plan 3 is a 
defined benefit plan with a defined contribution component. TRS eligibility for membership 
requires service as a certificated public school employee working in an instructional, 
administrative or supervisory capacity.  
 
TRS is comprised of three separate plans for accounting purposes: Plan 1, Plan 2/3, and 
Plan 3. Plan 1 accounts for the defined benefits of Plan 1 members. Plan 2/3 accounts for 
the defined benefits of Plan 2 members and the defined benefit portion of benefits for Plan 3 
members. Plan 3 accounts for the defined contribution portion of benefits for Plan 3 
members. Although members can only be a member of either Plan 2 or Plan 3, the defined 
benefit portions of Plan 2 and Plan 3 are accounted for in the same pension trust fund. All 
assets of this Plan 2/3 defined benefit plan may legally be used to pay the defined benefits 
of any of the Plan 2 or Plan 3 members or beneficiaries, as defined by the terms of the plan. 
Therefore, Plan 2/3 is considered to be a single plan for accounting purposes. 
 
TRS Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. TRS 1 members were vested 
after the completion of five years of eligible service. Retirement benefits are determined as 
two percent of the average final compensation (AFC), for each year of service credit, up to a 
maximum of 60 percent, divided by twelve. The AFC is the total earnable compensation for 
the two consecutive highest-paid fiscal years, divided by two. Members are eligible for 
retirement at any age after 30 years of service, or at the age of 60 with five years of service, 
or at the age of 55 with 25 years of service. Other benefits include temporary and 
permanent disability payments, an optional cost-of-living adjustment (COLA), and a one-
time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor and Industries. 
 
TRS Plan 2/3 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are 
determined as two percent of the average final compensation (AFC) per year of service for 
Plan 2 members and one percent of AFC for Plan 3 members. The AFC is the monthly 
average of the 60 consecutive highest-paid service credit months. There is no cap on years 
of service credit. Members are eligible for normal retirement at the age of 65 with at least 
five years of service credit. Retirement before age 65 is considered an early retirement. TRS 
Plan 2/3 members, who have at least 20 years of service credit and are 55 years of age or 
older, are eligible for early retirement with a reduced benefit. 
 
The benefit is reduced by a factor that varies according to age, for each year before age 65. 
TRS Plan 2/3 members who have 30 or more years of service credit, were hired prior to May 
1, 2013, and are at least 55 years old, can retire under one of two provisions: With a benefit 
that is reduced by three percent for each year before age 65; or with a benefit that has a 
smaller (or no) reduction (depending on age) that imposes stricter return-to-work rules. 
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TRS Plan 2/3 members hired on or after May 1, 2013, have the option to retire early by 
accepting a reduction of five percent for each year of retirement before age 65. This option 
is available only to those who are age 55 or older and have at least 30 years of service. 
TRS Plan 2/3 retirement benefits are also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a 
survivor benefit. 
 
Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, a cost-of-living allowance 
(based on the Consumer Price Index), capped at three percent annually and a one-time 
duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor and Industries. 
PERS Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. PERS 1 members were 
vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. Retirement benefits are 
determined as two percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the 
member’s years of service. The AFC is the average of the member’s 24 highest consecutive 
service months. Members are eligible for retirement from active status at any age with at 
least 30 years of service, at age 55 with at least 25 years of service, or at age 60 with at 
least five years of service. 
 
Members retiring from inactive status prior to the age of 65 may receive actuarially reduced 
benefits. PERS Plan 1 retirement benefits are actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a 
survivor benefit. Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, an optional 
cost-of-living adjustment (COLA), and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible 
by the Department of Labor and Industries. 
 
SERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of two separate 
plans for membership purposes. SERS Plan 2 is a defined benefit plan and SERS Plan 3 is 
a defined benefit plan with a defined contribution component. SERS members include 
classified employees of school districts and educational service districts.  
 
SERS is reported as two separate plans for accounting purposes: Plan 2/3 and Plan 3. Plan 
2/3 accounts for the defined benefits of Plan 2 members and the defined benefit portion of 
benefits for Plan 3 members. Plan 3 accounts for the defined contribution portion of benefits 
for Plan 3 members. 
 
Although members can only be a member of either Plan 2 or Plan 3, the defined benefit 
portions of Plan 2 and Plan 3 are accounted for in the same pension trust fund. All assets of 
this Plan 2/3 defined benefit plan may legally be used to pay the defined benefits of any of 
the Plan 2 or Plan 3 members or beneficiaries. Therefore, Plan 2/3 is considered to be a 
single plan for accounting purposes. 
 
SERS provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined 
as two percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s 
years of service for Plan 2 and one percent of AFC for Plan 3. The AFC is the monthly 
average of the member’s 60 highest-paid consecutive service months before retirement, 
termination or death. There is no cap on years of service credit. Members are eligible for 
retirement with a full benefit at 65 with at least five years of service credit. Retirement before 
age 65 is considered an early retirement. SERS members, who have at least 20 years of 
service credit and are 55 years of age or older, are eligible for early retirement with a 
reduced benefit.  
 
The benefit is reduced by a factor that varies according to age, for each year before age 65. 
SERS members who have 30 or more years of service credit and are at least 55 years old 
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can retire under one of two provisions, if hired prior to May 2, 2013: With a benefit that is 
reduced by three percent for each year before age 65; or with a benefit that has a smaller 
(or no) reduction (depending on age) that imposes stricter return-to-work rules. 
 
SERS members hired on or after May 1, 2013, have the option to retire early by accepting a 
reduction of five percent for each year of retirement before age 65. This option is available 
only to those who are age 55 or older and have at least 30 years of service. SERS 
retirement benefits are also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor benefit. 
Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, a cost- of-living allowance 
(based on the Consumer Price Index), capped at three percent annually and a one-time 
duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor and Industries. 
 
Plan Contributions 

 
The employer contribution rates for PERS, TRS, and SERS (Plans 1, 2, and 3) and the TRS 
and SERS Plan 2 employee contribution rates are established by the Pension Funding 
Council based upon the rates set by the Legislature. The methods used to determine the 
contribution requirements are established under chapters 41.40, 41.32, and 41.35 RCW for 
PERS, TRS and SERS respectively. Employers do not contribute to the defined contribution 
portions of TRS Plan 3 or SERS Plan 3. Under current law the employer must contribute 100 
percent of the employer-required contribution. The employee contribution rate for Plan 1 in 
PERS and TRS is set by statute at six percent and does not vary from year to year.  
 
The Employer and employee contribution rates for the PERS plan are effective as of July 1. 
SERS and TRS contribution rates are effective as of September 1. The pension plan 
contribution rates (expressed as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2017 and 2018 are 
listed below:  
 

Pension Rates 
 7/1/18 Rate 7/1/17 Rate  

PERS 1 
Member Contribution Rate 6.00% 6.00%  

Employer Contribution Rate 12.83% 12.70%  

Pension Rates 
 9/1/18 Rate 9/1/17 Rate  

TRS 1 
Member Contribution Rate 6.00% 6.00%  

Employer Contribution Rate 15.41% 15.20%  

TRS 2 
Member Contribution Rate 7.06% 7.06%  

Employer Contribution Rate 15.41% 15.20%  

TRS 3 
Member Contribution Rate varies* varies*  

Employer Contribution Rate 15.41% 15.20% ** 
SERS 2 
Member Contribution Rate 7.27% 7.27%  

Employer Contribution Rate 13.58% 13.48%  

SERS 3 
Member Contribution Rate varies* varies*  

Employer Contribution Rate 13.58% 13.48% ** 
Note:  The DRS administrative rate of .0018 is included in the employer rate. 
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* = Variable from 5% to 15% based on rate selected by the member. 
** = Defined benefit portion only. 

 
The Collective Net Pension Liability    
 
The collective net pension liabilities for the pension plans the ESDs participated in are reported 
in the following tables. 
 

The Net Pension Liability as of June 30, 2018: 

Dollars in 
Thousands 

PERS 1 SERS 2/3 TRS 1 TRS 2/3 
PERS 2/3 

WSIPC 
Total Pension 
Liability 

$12,143,412  $5,719,600  $8,722,439  $14,422,685  $40,392,728  

Plan fiduciary 
net position 

($7,677,378) ($5,420,538) ($5,801,847) ($13,972,571) ($38,685,317) 

Participating 
employers’ 
net pension 
liability 

$4,466,034  $299,062  $2,920,592  $450,114  $1,707,411  

Plan fiduciary 
net position 
as a 
percentage of 
the total 
pension 
liability 

63.22% 94.77% 66.52% 96.88% 95.77% 

 
The ESD’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (NPL)  

 
At June 30, 2018, the ESD reported a total liability of $ 2,719,763 for its proportionate 
shares of the individual plans’ collective net pension liability. The district’s proportionate 
share of the collective net pension liability is based on annual contributions for each of the 
employers participating in the DRS administered plans. At June 30, 2018, the district’s 
proportionate share of each plan’s net pension liability is reported below: 
 

June 30, 2018 PERS 1 SERS 2/3 TRS 1 TRS 2/3 
District’s Annual 
Contributions 193,844 289,192 115,438 118,098 

Proportionate Share 
of the  Net Pension 
Liability 

1,295,160 494,375 810,659 119,568 

 
At June 30, 2018, the ESD’ percentage of the proportionate share of the collective net 
pension liability was as follows and the change in the allocation percentage from the prior 
year is illustrated below:  
 

Changes in Proportionate Shares PERS 1 SERS 2/3 TRS 1 TRS 2/3 
Current year proportionate share of 
the Net Pension Liability 

.0269000% .165309% .027757% .026564% 
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Prior year proportionate share of 
the Net Pension Liability 

.033003% .189463% .024713% .023732% 

Net difference percentage 
-.004003% -.024154% .003044% .002832% 

 
Actuarial Assumptions  

 
Capital Market Assumptions (CMAs) and expected rates of return by asset class provided by 
the Washington State Investment Board. The Office of the State Actuary relied on the CMAs 
in the selection of the long-term expected rate of return for reporting purposes.  
 
The total pension liabilities for TRS 1, TRS 2/3, PERS 1 and SERS 2/3 were determined by 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, with the results rolled forward to June 30, 2018, 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the 
measurement: 

 
Mortality Rates  

 
Mortality rates used in the plans were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Table and 
Combined Disabled Table published by the Society of Actuaries. The Office of the State 
Actuary applied offsets to the base table and recognized future improvements in mortality by 
projecting the mortality rates using 100 percent Scale BB. Mortality rates are applied on a 
generational basis, meaning members are assumed to receive additional mortality 
improvements in each future year, throughout their lifetime. The actuarial assumptions used 
in the June 30, 2017, valuation were based on the results of the 2007–2012 Experience 
Study Report and the 2017 Economic Experience Study. Additional assumptions for 
subsequent events and law changes are current as of the 2017 actuarial valuation report. 

 
Long-term Expected Rate of Return  

 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which a best-estimate of expected future rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense, but including inflation) are developed for 
each major asset class by the Washington State Investment Board (WSIB). Those expected 
returns make up one component of WSIB’s CMAs. The CMAs contain three pieces of 
information for each class of assets the WSIB currently invest in:  

 Expected annual return  
 Standard deviation of the annual return 
 Correlations between the annual returns of each asset class with every other asset 

class 

WSIB uses the CMAs and their target asset allocation to simulate future investment returns 
over various time horizons. 

The long-term expected rate of return of 7.40% percent approximately equals the median of 
the simulated investment returns over a fifty-year time horizon, increased slightly to remove 
WSIB’s implicit and small short-term downward adjustment due to assumed mean reversion. 

Inflation 2.75 total economic inflation, 3.50% salary inflation  
Salary increases In addition to the base 3.50% salary inflation assumption, salaries are 

also expected to grow by promotions and longevity.   
Investment rate of return 7.40% 
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WSIB’s implicit short-term adjustment, while small and appropriate over a ten to fifteen-year 
period, becomes amplified over a fifty-year measurement period. 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the 
pension plans’ target asset allocation as of June 30, 2018, are summarized in the following 
table: 
 

TRS1, TRS 2/3, PERS 1, and SERS 2/3 

Asset Class Target 
Allocation  

Long-term Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

Fixed Income 20.00% 1.70% 
Tangible Assets 7.00% 4.90% 
Real Estate 18.00% 5.80% 
Global Equity 32.00% 6.30% 
Private Equity 23.00% 9.30% 

 

The inflation component used to create the above table is 2.20 percent, and represents 
WSIB’s most recent long-term estimate of broad economic inflation. 
 
Discount Rate  
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.40 percent. To determine 
the discount rate, an asset sufficiency test was completed to test whether the pension plan’s 
fiduciary net position was sufficient to make all projected future benefit payments of current 
plan members. Consistent with current law, the completed asset sufficiency test included an 
assumed 7.50 percent long-term discount rate to determine funding liabilities for calculating 
future contributions rate requirements. Consistent with the long-term expected rate of return, 
a 7.40 percent future investment rate of return on invested assets was assumed for the test. 
Contributions from plan members and employers are assumed to continue to be made at 
contractually required rates. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members.  

Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return of 7.40 percent on pension plan 
investments was applied to determine the total pension liability. 

 
Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

 
The Pension Plans reported collective Deferred Outflows of Resources and collective 
Deferred Inflows of Resources related to the individual plans. At August 31, 2018, the ESD 
reported Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
 

Plan Name  PERS 1 
Deferred Outflows of 

Resources 
Deferred Inflows of 

Resources 

Difference between expected and actual 
experiences  

$ $ 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments 

$ $ 51,469 
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Changes in assumptions or other inputs $ $ 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between contributions and proportionate 
share of contributions  

$ $ 

Contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date  

$  37,529 $ 

TOTAL $  37,529 $  51,469 

 

Plan Name SERS 2/3 
Deferred Outflows of 

Resources 
Deferred Inflows of 

Resources 

Difference between expected and actual 
experiences  

$  136,254 $ 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments 

$ $ 240,367 

Changes in assumptions or other inputs $ 3,918 $ 101,479 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between contributions and proportionate 
share of contributions  

$ 34,081 $ 146,380 

Contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date  

$  57,980 $ 

TOTAL $  232,233 $ 488,226 

 

Plan Name  TRS 1 
Deferred Outflows of 

Resources 
Deferred Inflows of 

Resources 

Difference between expected and actual 
experiences  

$ $ 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments 

$  $  34,667 

Changes in assumptions or other inputs $ $ 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between contributions and proportionate 
share of contributions  

$ $ 

Contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date  

$  23,805 $ 

TOTAL $  23,805 $  34,667 

 

Plan Name TRS 2/3 
Deferred Outflows of 

Resources 
Deferred Inflows of 

Resources 

Difference between expected and actual 
experiences  

$  56,188 $ 8,829 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments 

$  $ 101,122 
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Changes in assumptions or other inputs $  2,033 $ 48,050 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between contributions and proportionate 
share of contributions  

$  41,543 $ 11,320 

Contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date  

$  24,540 $ 

TOTAL $  124,304 $  169,321 

 
$143,855 reported as Deferred Outflows of Resources related to pensions resulting from 
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction 
of the net pension liability in the year ended August 31, 2019.  
 
Other amounts reported as Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year ended 
August 31 

PERS 1 SERS 2/3 TRS 1 TRS 2/3 

2019 2,252 3,701 3,469 6,479 
2020 (11,251) (78,587) (7,176) (17,509) 
2021 (33,762) (146,879) (24,652) (52,118) 
2022 (8,707)  (54,319) (6,307) (12,313) 
2023   (27,955)   1,919 

Thereafter   (9,935)    3,986 
 

Pension Expense 
 

The ESD recognizes a pension expense for its proportionate share of the collective pension 
expense. This is determined by using the district’s proportionate share of the collective net 
pension liability.  For the year ending August 31, 2018, the ESD recognized a total pension 
expense as follows:  
 
 

 Pension Expense 
PERS 1 $                    (283,749) 
SERS 2/3 $                    (150,985) 
TRS 1 $                         59,120 
TRS 2/3 $                      (60,198) 

TOTAL $                    (435,811) 
 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The table below presents the ESD’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.40%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.40%) or one percentage 
point higher (8.40%) than the current rate. Amounts are calculated by plan using the ESD’s 
allocation percentage. 
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 1% Decrease (6.40%) 
Current Discount Rate 

(7.40%) 
1% Increase (8.40%) 

PERS 1 NPL $5,488,477,000 $4,466,034,000 $3,580,392,000 
Allocation Percentage .029000% .029000% .029000% 
Proportionate Share of 
Collective NPL  

$ 1,591,671 $,1,295,160 $ 1,038,322 

 
SERS 2/3 NPL $1,127,549,000 $299,062,000 ($383,817,000) 
Allocation Percentage .165309% .165309% .165309% 
Proportionate Share of 
Collective NPL  

$ 1,863,935 $ 494,375 $ (634,482) 

 
TRS 1 NPL $3,650,431,000 $2,920,592,000 $2,288,760,000 
Allocation Percentage .027757% .027757% .027757% 
Proportionate Share of 
Collective NPL  

$ 1,013,239 $ 810,659 $ 635,284 

 
TRS 2/3 NPL $2,805,439,000 $450,114,000 ($1,463,229,000) 
Allocation Percentage .026564% .026564% .026564% 

Proportionate Share of 
Collective NPL  

$ 745,234 $ 119,568 $ (388,691) 

 
Schedule of Required Supplementary Information 
Required supplementary information is presented in the required supplementary schedules 
for each plan the District participates in. 

 
Note 7: OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS 
 

457 Plan – Deferred Compensation Plan 
 

District employees have the option of participating in an IRC, Section 457, deferred 
compensation plan administered by the District, a state retirement system, or another 
governmental entity. The plan assets and all related income are held in trust for the 
exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. 
 
403(b) Plan – Tax Sheltered Annuity (TSA) 

 
The District offers a tax deferred annuity plan for its employees. The plan permits 
participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years under the elective deferral 
(employee contribution method). The District complies with IRS regulations that require 
school districts to have written plans to include participating investment companies, types of 
investments, loans, transfers, and various requirements. The plan is administered by CPI, (a 
third party administrator).   
 
The plan assets are assets of District employees, not the ESD, and are therefore not 
reflected in these financial statements. 
 
Access to Other Post Employment Medical Benefits through the Washington State 
Health Care Authority (HCA) 
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Washington State, through the HCA, administers a defined benefit other post-employment 
(OPEB) plan. The Public Employees Benefits Board (PEBB) created under the HCA is 
authorized to design benefits and determine the terms and conditions of employee and 
retired employee participation and coverage, including establishment of eligibility criteria for 
both active and retired employees. Eligible retirees and spouses are entitled to subsidies 
associated with postemployment medical benefits provided through PEBB.  

 
The relationship between the PEBB OPEB plan and its employers and their employees and 
retirees is not formalized in a contract or plan document. Rather, the benefits are provided in 
accordance with a substantive plan. A substantive plan is one in which the plan terms are 
understood by the employers and plan members. This understanding is based on 
communications between the HCA, employers and plan members, and the historical pattern 
of practice with regard to sharing of benefit costs.  

 
Participation in the plan is administered by HCA as a single-employer defined benefit OPEB 
plan. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75 (GASB 75).  

 
Implementation of GASB 75 in the Fiscal Year Ending August 31, 2018  
GASB No. 75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than 
Pensions (GASB 75) governs the specifics of accounting for public OPEB plan obligations 
for participating employers and is required to be implemented for fiscal years beginning after 
June 15, 2017. The District has implemented GASB 75 treatment for the plan as a single-
employer defined benefit OPEB plan for the fiscal year September 1, 2017 to August 31, 
2018.  

 
Valuation Date, Measurement Date and Reporting Date  
The “valuation date” is July 1, 2018. This is the date as of which the census data is gathered 
and the actuarial valuation is performed. The “measurement date” is August 31, 2018. This 
is the date as of which the Total OPEB Liability is determined. The “reporting date” is the 
District’s fiscal year end of August 31, 2018.  

 
The Total OPEB Liability is also reported as of the beginning of the measurement period as 
permitted by GASB 75 in this transition year. This calculation is based on a roll backward of 
the actuarial valuation results, with an adjustment to the discount rate.  

 
General Description 
Employers participating in the PEBB plan include the Washington state general government 
agencies, higher education institutions, K-12 school and educational service districts and 
political subdivisions. Additionally, the PEBB’s OPEB plan is available to retirees of  K-12 
school districts and educational service districts who do not participate in PEBB for 
insurance for their active employees.  RCW 41.05.085 provides that contribution 
requirements of participating employers and of plan members are established by and may 
be amended by the HCA Board of Directors. Participating employers and active plan 
members are required to contribute the established benefit rates. All K-12 school districts 
and ESDs contribute the same rate which is set annually as an amount per pro-rated FTE 
under RCW 28A.400.410. Employers do not have the ability to contribute additionally to 
funding against future liabilities or impact funding progress on the actuarially determined 
liability of the HCA OPEB plan. The District does not participate in PEBB for insurance for its 
active employees, The District’s established contribution to PEBB for retiree OPEB for the 
fiscal year ending August 31, 2018 under the required formula was $58,546. 

Page 45



 
The PEBB OPEB plan provides healthcare insurance benefits (medical and dental) for 
retirees and their dependents. Retired members may only elect dental coverage if they have 
elected medical coverage. PEBB offers thirteen (13) medical plans and three (3) dental 
plans. All current and future retirees who elect medical and dental coverage are assumed to 
elect carriers based on the weighted average of selection of carriers by current PEBB 
retirees.  
 
Employees covered by benefit terms. District employees are eligible for retiree medical 
benefits after becoming eligible for service retirement pension benefits (either reduced or full 
pension benefits) under Plan 2 or 3 of TRS or SERS (see Note 6):  

• Age 65 with 5 years of service for Plan 2  
• Age 55 with 20 years of service for Plan 2  
• Age 55 with 10 years of service for Plan 3  

 
Former members who are entitled to a deferred vested pension benefit are not eligible to 
receive medical and life insurance benefits after pension benefit commencement. 
Survivors of covered members who die are eligible for medical benefits. At June 30, 
2018, the following employees were covered by benefit terms:  
 
Retirees or dependents currently receiving benefit payments   23 

Active employees who may qualify for benefits upon retirement  130 
 

 

  
  
 

It is not possible to determine the number of inactive employees entitled to, but not yet 
receiving benefit payments. Retiring employees apply for benefits at their discretion, may be 
otherwise working and not eligible for benefits or be deceased. This data is not monitored by 
the District, HCA or the State of Washington. 
 
Election assumptions. 50% of employees are assumed to elect medical and dental benefits 
upon retirement. 45% of employees are assumed to enroll eligible dependents as of the 
retirement date. 100% of employees are assumed to enroll in Medicare, once eligible, after 
initial participation.  
 
Total OPEB Liability  
The District’s Total OPEB Liability of $1,763,237 and $1,829,236 was measured for the 
years ending August 31, 2017 and 2018, respectively, and was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of the valuation date of July 1, 2018, calculated based on the discount rates 
discussed below, projected to the measurement dates. There have been no significant 
changes between the valuation date and the fiscal year end. If there were significant 
changes, an additional analysis or valuation might be required.  
 
Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs  
The Total OPEB Liability in the July 1, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement dates, unless otherwise specified.  

 
Inflation. The inflation rate of 2.75% was developed by the Office of the State Actuary for 
PEBB1 and was applied to the measurement dates ending August 31, 2017 and 2018.  
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Salary increases. Salary assumptions reflect the assumptions used in the actuarial 
valuations for Washington State School Employees’ Retirement System (SERS) and 
Teacher Retirement System (TRS) 2. Projected payroll increases have been assumed to 
be 3.5% which equals 0.75% real wage growth above inflation. Projected annual merit 
and longevity increases for SERS range from 6.60% for 0 years of service to 0.10% for 
20 years of service. Projected annual merit and longevity increases for TRS range from 
5.10% for 0 years of service to 0.10% for 25 years of service.  
 
Discount Rate. The discount rate was based on the 20-year Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond 
Yield (Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-bond municipal index for bonds that mature in 
20 years). Discount rate assumptions were 3.51% and 3.96% for the measurement 
dates of August 31, 2017 and 2018, respectively.  
 
Demographic Assumptions. Demographic assumptions regarding retirement, mortality, 
turnover, and marriage are based on assumptions used in the Office of the State 
Actuary’s actuarial valuation for Washington State SERS and TRS 2, modified for the 
District.  

 Service retirement assumptions for plans 2 and 3 were used, which vary 
based on hire date and years of service.  

 The assumed rates of disability under SERS and TRS plans 2 and 3 are less 
than 0.1% for ages 50 and below and continue to be low after that; 
demographic assumptions assume a 0% disability rate for all ages.  

 Mortality assumptions for SERS were used (RP-2000 base mortality table, 
adjusted by -1 year for both males and females, with generational mortality 
adjustments using projection scale BB).  

Healthcare Cost Trends. Healthcare cost trends used in the actuarial valuation were 
developed for use in the July 1, 2018 OPEB valuation for the PEBB program1, to be 
performed by the Office of the State Actuary. These assumptions are summarized below 
and refer to the amount by which medical costs are anticipated to exceed costs for the 
year ending 2018:  

 
 

Year Ending June 30 
Pre-65 Retiree Premiums & 

Claims 
 

Post-65 Retiree Claims 
 

Post-65 Retiree Premiums 
2019 6.8%  3.6%  2.8%  
2020-2095 6.3% to 4.5%  7.6% to 4.7%  12.5% to 4.7% 

 
 

Dental costs trends are assumed to increase 1.1% to 4.0% for the year 2019-2026 and 
beyond.  

 
Healthcare cost trends reflect the impact of the excise tax for high cost or “Cadillac” 
health plans for 2022 and beyond, consistent with the current tax code in effect.  
 
Premium Levels. Assumed annual medical retiree contributions as of July 1, 2018, used 
in the actuarial valuation are displayed below. These represent a weighted average of 
2018 PEBB retiree contributions by medical plan, based on overall PEBB current retiree 
medical plan election. Contribution assumptions exclude fees charged as a direct pass-
through to participating retirees.  
 

 Employee or Spouse  
 Non-Medicare Medicare 
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Weighted average based on current PEBB retirees  $8,052.58 $3,180.06 

 
The July 1 2018 assumed annual dental retiree contributions for employee or spouse is 
$547.17, representing a weighted average of 2018 PEBB retiree contributions by dental 
plan, based on overall PEBB current retiree dental plan elections.  

 
Actuarial cost method. The actuarial cost method used for determining the benefit 
obligations is the Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method whereby the actuarial present value 
of the projected benefits of each individual included in the valuation is allocated as a 
level percentage of expected salary for each year of employment between entry age 
(defined as age at hire) and assumed exit (until maximum retirement age).  
 
1 The actuarial valuation for the Washington state OPEB plan offered through PEBB 
under administration of HCA can be found at 
http://leg.wa.gov/osa/additionalservices/Pages/OPEB.aspx  

 
2 The actuarial valuation for the Washington State School Employees’ Retirement 
System (SERS) and Teacher Retirement System (TRS) can be found in the Department 
of Retirement Systems annual Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) at 
https://www.drs.wa.gov/administration/annual-report/default.htm  

 
Claims Cost Assumptions  
Subsidies provided by PEBB and valued in the actuarial valuation include the following:  

• Explicit medical subsidy for post-65 retirees and spouses  
• Implicit medical and dental subsidy  

 
The explicit subsidies are monthly amounts paid per post-65 retirees and spouses. As of the 
valuation date, the explicit subsidy for post-65 retirees and spouses is the lessor of $150 or 50% 
of the monthly premiums. As of January 1, 2019, the subsidy will be increased to $168 per 
month. Retirees and spouses currently pay the premium minus $150 when the premium is over 
$300 per month and pay half the premium when the premium is lower than $300.  
 
The implicit medical subsidy is the difference between the total cost of medical benefits and 
premiums. For pre- 65 retirees and spouses, the retiree pays the full premium amount, based 
on a pool that includes active employees. Active employees will tend to be younger and 
healthier than retirees on average and therefore can be expected to have lower average health 
costs. (For post-65 retirees and spouses, the retiree does not pay the full premium due to the 
explicit subsidy discussed above.) Under GASB 75, the total cost of benefit payments is to be 
based on claims costs or age-adjusted premiums approximating claims costs. The projection of 
retiree premiums is based on current amounts for the retirees’ share of the premium, projected 
with the medical trend assumption, varied by age and sex. Implicit subsidies for dental coverage 
is also reflected in the actuarial valuation. 
 
Changes in the Total OPEB Liability  
The increase (decrease) in the Total OPEB Liability is detailed in the table below for the fiscal 
year ending August 31, 2018:  
 
Balance as of August 31, 2017  $1,763,237  
Changes for the year:  
Service cost  194,329  
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Interest on Total OPEB Liability  67,984  
Effect of plan changes  -  
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses  -  
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs  (154,544)  
Expected benefit payments  (41,770)  
Balance as of August 31, 2018  $ 1,829,236  
 
Service cost represents the portion of the actuarial present value of expected benefit payments 
that is attributed to the valuation year.  
 
Changes in assumptions or inputs represents the change in the portion of changes in the Total 
OPEB Liability that is not immediately recognized in OPEB expense and includes differences 
between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions, and differences between 
expected and actual earnings on plan investments.  
 
Expected benefit payments represent all benefits estimated to be payable through the OPEB 
plan to current active and inactive employees as a result of their past service and expected 
future service. This is the subsidy difference between the total cost of benefits and the portion of 
the benefits paid by the retirees. Per employee health costs vary depending on age, number of 
dependents and expected morbidity  
 
Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents 
the District’s Total OPEB Liability, calculated using the discount rate of 3.96%, as well as what 
the District’s Total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 
percentage point lower (2.96%) or 1 percentage point higher (4.96%) than the current rate: 
 
 1% Decrease  

2.96% 
Discount Rate  
3.96% 

1% Increase  
4.96% 

Total August 31, 2018 OPEB Liability  $2,198,759  $1,829,236  $1,542,275  
 
Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents the Total 
OPEB Liability of the District, calculated using the current healthcare cost trend rates as well as what the District’s 
Total OPEB Liability would be if it were calculated using trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage 
point higher than the current trend rates. 
 
 1% Decrease Current Trend 

Rate 
Current Trend Rate  

Total August 31, 2018 OPEB Liability  $1,504,523  $1,829,236  $2,267,686 
 
 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to OPEB  
For the year ended August 31, 2018, the District recognized OPEB expense of $248,135 as 
follows: 
 
For the year ending  August 31, 2018 
Service cost  $ 194,329  
Interest on Total OPEB Liability  67,984  
Effect of plan changes  -  
Recognition of Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources  
Recognition of economic/demographic gains/losses  -  
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Recognition of assumption changes or inputs  (14,178)  
OPEB Expense  $248,135  
 
The District reported deferred inflows and outflows of resources as of the August 31, 2018 
Measurement Date as follows: 

 
 Deferred Inflows of Resource Deferred Outflows of 

Resources  
Differences between expected and actual 
experience  

$ -  $ -  

Changes of assumptions or inputs  (140,366)  -  
Contributions made subsequent to the 
Measurement Date  

NA  -  

Total  $ (140,366)  $ -  
 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

Measurement Period Ending August 31,  
2019  $ (14,178)  

2020  (14,178)  

2021  (14,178)  

2022  (14,178)  

2023  (14,178)  

Thereafter  $ (69,476)  

 
 
Note 8: SHARED RISK POOL DISCLOSURES  
 

Workers' Compensation Insurance Trust 
 

The Workers' Compensation Trust is organized pursuant to Title 51.14 RCW for the purpose 
of managing workers’ compensation payroll taxes, employee claims, and safety programs. 
Membership is established by execution of an agreement between the District and each 
local school district.  The District is also a member of the Trust. 
 
The Trust provides industrial injury accident insurance coverage for its membership.  The 
Trust is fully funded by its member participants.  Member contributions are calculated based 
on the members’ hours worked.  The Trust retains responsibility for the payment of claims 
within specified self-insured retention limits prior to the application of coverage provided by 
its excess insurance contracts. The Trust acquires insurance from unrelated underwriters.  
The Trust’s per-occurrence retention limit is $450,000 and the bi-annual aggregate retention 
is $9,586,061.  Since the Trust is a cooperative program, there is a joint liability among 
participating members. 
 
For fiscal year 2018, there are 19 members in the pool including 18 participating school 
districts.  A Board comprised of one designated representative from each participating 
member and a six member Executive Board governs the Trust. The Executive Board has 
five members elected by the Board and the District Superintendent. The District is 
responsible for conducting the business affairs of the Trust. At August 31, 2018, the amount 
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of liabilities totaled $4,660,249. This liability is the Districts best estimate based on available 
information. Changes in the reported liability since August 31, 2017, resulted in the 
following: 
 

 
Beginning Balance 
9/1/2017 

Current Year Claims 
and Changes in 
Estimates 

Ending Balance 
8/31/2018 

Incurred but not Reported $ 3,815,000 $(338,000) $3,477,000 
Future L&I Assessments 630,000 25,000 655,000 
Estimated Unallocated Loss 
Adjustment 

 
264,000 

 
(19,000) 

 
245,000 

 
Unemployment Compensation Insurance Fund 

 
The Unemployment Compensation Pool is organized pursuant to Title 50.44 RCW for the 
purpose of managing unemployment compensation payroll taxes and employee claims. 
Membership is established by execution of an agreement between the District and each 
local school district.  The District is also a member of the pool. 
 
The pool provides unemployment compensation coverage for members of the pool arising 
from previous employees.  The pool is fully funded by its member participants.  Member 
districts pay a percentage of their employee’s wages.  These contributions plus investment 
earnings pays for unemployment claims and for the administration of the fund.  There is 
provision that members can be additionally assessed if the Pool needs additional funding. 
 
For fiscal year 2018, there are 17 members in the pool including 16 participating school 
districts.  The pool is governed by a Cooperative Board, which is comprised of one 
designated representative from each participating member and a six member Executive 
Board. Five members elected by the Cooperative Board and the District Superintendent 
comprise the Executive Board.  At August 31, 2018, the amount of liabilities totaled 
$2,553,269. This liability is the Districts best estimate based on available information. 
Changes in the reported liability since August 31, 2017, resulted in the following: 
 

 
Beginning Balance 
9/1/2017 

Current Year Claims 
and Changes in 
Estimates 

Ending Balance 
8/31/2018 

Claims Reserve $ 0 $0 $0 
 
Note 9: RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
The District is a member of the Washington Schools Risk Management Pool (Pool). Chapter 
48.62 RCW authorizes the governing body of any one or more governmental entities to form 
together into or join a pool or organization for the joint purchasing of insurance, and/or joint self-
insuring, and/or joint hiring or contracting for risk management services to the same extent that 
they may individually purchase insurance, self-insure, or hire or contract for risk management 
services.  An agreement to form a pooling arrangement was made pursuant to the provisions of 
Chapter 39.34 RCW, the Interlocal Cooperation Act.  The Pool was formed in 1986 when 
educational services districts and school districts in the State of Washington joined together by 
signing the Cooperative Risk Management Pool Account Agreement to pool their self-insured 
losses and jointly purchase insurance and administrative services.  Over 90 school and 
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educational service districts have joined the Pool.  The District joined the Pool effective 
September 1, 1998. 
 
The Pool allows members to jointly purchase coverage, establish a plan of self-insurance, and 
provide related services, such as risk management.  The Pool provides the following coverages 
for its members:  property, liability, vehicle, public official liability, crime, employment practices, 
errors & omissions, equipment breakdown, network security, terrorism and stop gap liability. 
 
Members make an annual contribution to fund the Pool.  The Pool acquires reinsurance from 
unrelated underwriters that are subject to a per-occurrence self-insured retention of $1 million 
shared by the pool.  Members are responsible for varied deductibles for both liability and 
property claims.  Insurance carriers cover losses over $1 million to the maximum limits of each 
policy.  Since the Pool is a cooperative program, there is a joint liability among the participating 
members. 
 
 
Members contract to remain in the Pool for a minimum of three years and must give notice three 
years before terminating participation.  The Cooperative Risk Management Pool Account 
Agreement is renewed automatically each year after the initial three-year period.  Even after 
termination, a member is still responsible for contributions to the Pool for any unresolved, 
unreported, and in-process claims for the period they are a signatory to the Cooperative Risk 
Management Pool Account Agreement. 
 
The Pool is governed by a board of directors, which is comprised of one designated 
representative from each participating member.  An executive board is elected at the annual 
meeting, and is responsible for overseeing the business affairs of the Pool.  Financial 
statements and disclosures for the Pool can be obtained from the following address:  
 

Washington Schools Risk Management Pool 
320 Andover Park East, Suite 275 
Tukwila, WA.  98188 

 
Note 10: NET POSITION, RESTRICTED 
 
The District’s statement of net position reports $ 303,562 of restricted assets for Support 
Programs.  The following lists the programs restricted by the Board of Directors: 
 

Support Program Amount 
Instructional $ 76,154 
Non-Instructional  227,408 
  
Total Restricted for Support Programs $303,562 

 
Note 11: JOINT VENTURE WITH UNDIVIDED INTEREST 
 

Compensated Absences Liability Fund  
 

The Compensated Absences Liability Fund is organized under the provisions of Chapter 
39.34 Interlocal Cooperation Act for the purpose of managing leave payouts. Membership is 
established by execution of an agreement between the District and each local school 
district.  The District is also a member of the Fund. 
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For fiscal year 2018, there are 5 members in the Fund including 4 participating school 
districts.  The Fund allows members to accumulate dedicated funds for payment of leave 
related to sick leave and vacation leave buy out at retirement and certain other instances.  
Payroll contributions are made to the Fund at the time leave is earned to reserve assets for 
expenditures. Coverage is on an “occurrence” basis.  Expenditures of leave taken during 
employment continue to be recorded when paid. 
 
The District contributes to the Compensated Absences Liability Pool for liabilities relating to 
sick leave and vacation leave cash outs. As of August 31, 2018, the District’s total 
compensated absences balance in the pool was $159,408.  The District reports the balance 
of the liabilities and does not reduce the liability by the funded portion.  The funded portion is 
reported as an asset.   

 
Changes for the fiscal year are summarized below. 
 
  Balance at 

8/31/2018 
Beginning Long-term Liability  $237,244.36 
   
Beginning Pool Balance $130,313.23  
Payments to Pool $25,547.67  
Interest $3,547.30  
Withdrawals from Pool ($ 0.00)  
Ending Pool Balance $159,408.21 

 

Increase (Decrease) to Estimates of Long-term 
Liability 

 $(6,120.37) 

Ending Long-term Liability  $231,123.99 
 
Note 12: INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE 
 

Washington State Information Processing Cooperative 
 

The District is a member of the Washington Information Processing Cooperative.  The 
WSIPC Board of Directors consists of a member of each the nine Educational Service 
Districts in the state.  ESD 123 is the fiscal agent of the joint venture and answers directly to 
the WSIPC Board of Directors in financial matters. 
 
WSIPC adopted GASB 68 at the year ended August 31, 2015.  GASB 68 requires 
participating entities in the State Department of Retirement System (DRS) to recognize their 
proportionate share of the individual plans’ net pension liability and related component 
measurers that are reported on the DRS comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) 
each year.  WSIPC’s financial statements include the proportionate share of the net pension 
liability associated with Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) plans. 
 
WSIPC adopted GASB 75 at the year ended August 31, 2018 to recognize the unfunded 
OPEB (Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than Pensions) liability on WSIPC’s financial 
statements.  WSIPC Total OPEB Liability and the related component measures were 
determined through an actuarial valuation consistent with the actuarial valuation method 
used by the nine ESDs.  WSIPC net position includes a cumulative change in accounting 
principle associated with the adoption of GASB 75.   
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Condensed financial information of the joint venture for the fiscal year ended August 31, 
2018, is as follows: 

 
Statement of Net Position Amount 
Assets & Deferred Outflows  
 Current Assets 6,902,203 
 Non-Current Assets 1,688,220 
 Deferred Outflows of Pensions 419,112 
             Other Assets  
Total Assets & Deferred Outflows 9,009,535 
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Joint Venture Capital  
 Current Liabilities 850,582 
 Noncurrent Liabilities - Other 385,611 
              Net Pension Liability 3,792,197 
              Total OPEB Liability 3,113,905 
              Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pensions 1,555,568 
              Deferred Inflows of Resources – OPEB 226,895 
 Investment in Joint Venture (915,223) 
Total Liabilities and Joint Venture Capital 9,009,535 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position 

 

Operating Revenues 
Plus/Minus Other Income/Expense (Net) 

23,106,691 
67,713 

Less Operating Expenses 22,655,904 
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position 518,500 
Cumulative Change in Accounting Principle (3,198,674) 
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position ($2,680,174) 

 
The District’s share of the total Investment in the Joint Venture is ($101,691).  There were 
no contributions to, or distributions from, the Joint Venture in 2018.  Each ESD has an equal 
equity share. 
 
The financial statements of the joint venture may be obtained by contacting Washington 
State Information Processing Cooperative (WSIPC) at: 

Washington School Information Processing Cooperative 
2121 W. Casino Road  
Everett, WA  98204-1472 

 
Note 13: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND LITIGATIONS 
 
The Educational Service District has no known legal obligations that would materially impact the 
financial position of the district.   
 
Note 14: OTHER DISCLOSURES 
 

Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 
 

There have been no material violations of finance-related legal or contractual provisions. 
 

Accounting and Reporting Changes  
 
For the fiscal year ending August 31, 2018 the district has implemented GASB Statement 
No. 75 Accounting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB).  
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Implementation of the new statement, which had an effective date for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2017, resulted in an adjustment for Change in Accounting Principle of 
$1,763,237. 

 
Subsequent Events 

 
There were no events after the financial reporting date that would have a material impact on 
the next future years. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
 
RSI for Property/Casualty Cooperatives/Pools and Workers Compensation Pools: 
 
This required supplementary information is an integral part of the accompanying financial 
statements. 
 
Part 1 - Ten-Year Claims Development Information 
 
The table below illustrates how the pool’s earned revenues (net of reinsurance) and investment 
income compare to related costs of loss (net of loss assumed by reinsurers) and other 
expenses assumed by the pool as of the end of each of the last ten years.  The rows of the 
table are defined as follows: 

1. This line shows the total of each fiscal year gross earned contribution revenue, 
investment revenue, contribution revenue ceded to reinsurers, and net earned 
contribution revenue and reported investment revenue. 

2. This line shows each fiscal year’s other operating costs of the pool including overhead 
and claims expense not allocable to individual claims. 

3. This line shows the pool’s gross incurred claims and allocated claim adjustment 
expenses, claims assumed by reinsurers, and net incurred claims and allocated 
adjustment expenses (both paid and accrued) as originally reported at the end of the first 
year in which the event that triggered coverage under the contract occurred (called 
policy year). 

4. This section of ten rows shows the cumulative net amounts paid as of the end of 
successive years for each policy year. 

5. This line shows the latest re-estimated amount of claims assumed by reinsurers as of 
the end of the current year for each accident year. 

6. This section of ten rows shows how each policy year’s net incurred claims increased or 
decreased as of the end of successive years.  (This annual re-estimation results from 
new information received on known claims, reevaluation of existing information on 
known claims, as well as emergence of new claims not previously known.) 

7. This line compares the latest re-estimated net incurred claims amount to the amount 
originally established (line 3) and shows whether this latest estimate of net claims cost is 
greater or less than originally thought.  As data for individual policy years mature, the 
correlation between original estimates and re-estimated amounts is commonly used to 
evaluate the accuracy of net incurred claims currently recognized in less mature policy 
years.  The columns of the table show data for successive policy years.
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 Fiscal and Policy Year Ended 
 (In Thousands) 

            
     2009    2010    2011    2012    2013      2014         2015    2016    2017    2018 
 1. Required contribution and investment revenue 

Earned  $3,100 $3,082 $3,199 $3,273 $3,090 $3,225 $3,515 $3,929 $4,135 $4,457 
Ceded  102 135 108 108 111 126 128 134 140 146 
Net 
earned  

 
2,998 2,947 3,091 3,165 2,979 3,099 3,387 3,795 3,995 4,310 

            
 2. Unallocated expenses 
  409 414 419 385 502 265 261 445 889 771 

            
 3. Estimated claims and expenses end of policy year: 

Incurred 
 

 
1,400 1,553 1,845 1,695 1,929 2,279 1,874 2,310 2,373 1,979 

Ceded* 
 

 
0 39 45 35 29 29 24 60 73 54 

Net 
incurred 

 

 
 

1,400 1,514 1,800 1,660 1,900 2,250 1,850 2,250 2,300 1,925 
            
 4. Net paid (cumulative) as of: 

End of 
policy 
year  

 
 

412 385 536 422 564 692 444 582 789 578 
One 
year 
later  

 
 

850 843 959 1,100 1,132 1,517 1,023 1,110 1,325  
Two 
years 
later  

 
 

1,081 1,089 1,257 1,471 1,392 2,046 1,413 1,385   
Three 
years 
later  

 
 

1,204 1,213 1,372 1,626 1,511 2,218 1,550    
Four 
years 
later  

 
 

1,344 1,257 1,466 1,687 1,564 2,335     
Five 
years 
later  

 
 

1,400 1,259 1,499 1,717 1,566      
Six 
years 
later  

 
 

1,439 1,259 1,515 1,718       
Seven 
years 
later  

 
 

1,502 1,259 1,532        
Eight 
years 
later  

 
 

1,528 1,259         
Nine 
years 
later  

 
 

1,566          
            
 5. Re-estimated ceded claims and expenses 

 
 

 
11 11 11 14 14 26 21 26 33 54 

            
 6. Re-estimated net incurred claims and expenses 
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End of 
policy 
year 

 
 
  1,400 1,514 1,800 1,660 1,900 

  
2,250  1,850 2,250 2,300 1,925 

One year 
later 

 
  1,513 1,500 1,600 2,000 2,050 2,450  1,850 2,050 1,985  

Two years 
later 

 
  1,500 1,475 1,775 2,000 1,850 2,515  1,800 1,790   

Three 
years later 

 
1,475 1,415 1,750 1,885 1,800 2,595  1,875    

Four 
years later 

 
1,515 1,405 1,665 1,875 1,710 2,510      

Five years 
later 

 
1,600 1,355 1,640 1,840 1,685       

Six years 
later 

 
1,555 1,335 1,610 1,895        

Seven 
years later 

 
1,610 1,315 1,585         

Eight 
years later 

 
1,595 1,295          

Nine 
years later 

 
1,655           

            
 7. Increase (decrease) in estimated net incurred claims and expenses from end of policy year 
 255 (219) (215) 235 (215) 260  25 (460) (315) 0 

 
 
*Estimates were not done for years prior to 2009-10.

Page 58



 

 
 

Part 2 - Reconciliation of Claims Liabilities by Type of Contract 
 
The schedule below presents the changes in claims liabilities for the past two years for the 
pool's two types of contracts:  property and casualty, and employee health and accident 
benefits. 
 

 Employee Health and Accident 
 (In Thousands) 
 Year Ended Year Ended 
 8/31/2018 8/31/2017 
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at beginning of the 
fiscal year 

 
4,709 

 
4,793 

Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses: 1,925 2,300 
Provision for insured events of the current fiscal year 1,274 1,284 
Increases in provision for insured events of prior fiscal years (553) (400) 

 (19) 4 
Total incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 2,628 3,188 
Payments:   

Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to 
insured events of the current fiscal year 

 
578 

 
789 

Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to 
insured events of prior fiscal years 

 
1,132 

 
1,231 

 1,250 1,252 
Total payments 2,960 3,273 

Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at end of the 
fiscal year. 

 
4,376 

 
4,709 
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Schedules of Required Supplementary Information for Pension Plans 

 
The required supplementary information identified below is presented separately for each 
plan the ESD participates in. The amounts reported in the Schedules of the Districts 
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability are determined as of the June 30 
measurement date of the collective net pension liability.  
 

 SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF 
THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

  

 PERS 1   
 Last 10 Fiscal Years* (Dollar amounts in thousands)   

 2015 2016 2017 2018 
District’s proportion of the net pension liability 
(percentage) 

.026771% .031426% .03303% .029000% 

District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(amount) 

$1,400,359 $1,687,732 $1,566,017 $1,295,160 

District’s covered payroll $3,001,551 $3,767,700 $3,997,685 $3,729,269 
District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(amount) as a percentage of its covered payroll 

 
46.65% 

 
44.79% 

 
39.17% 

 
34.73% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 

59.10% 57.03% 61.24% 63.22% 

 

*This schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data. 

 
 SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF 

THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
  

 SERS 2/3   
 Last 10 Fiscal Years* (Dollar amounts in thousands)   

 2015 2016 2017 2018 
District’s proportion of the net pension liability 
(percentage) 

.170642% .201048% .189463% .165309% 

District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(amount) 

$693,065 $1,320,418 $934,952 $494,375 

District’s covered payroll $2,937,432 $3,717,557 $3,871,538 $3,623,557 
District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(amount) as a percentage of its covered payroll 

 
23.59% 

 
35.52% 

 
24.15% 

 
13.64% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 

90.92% 86.52% 90.79% 94.77% 

*This schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data. 
 

 SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF 
THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

  

 TRS 1   

 Last 10 Fiscal Years* (Dollar amounts in thousands)   

 2015 2016 2017 2018 

District’s proportion of the net pension liability 
(percentage) 

.25202% .25669% .024713% .027757% 

District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(amount) 

$798,447 $876,396 $747,146 $810,659 
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District’s covered payroll $1,208,020 $1,271,704 $1,343,011 $1,591,438 

District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(amount) as a percentage of its covered payroll 

 
66.10% 

 
68.92% 

 
55.63% 

 
50.94% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 

65.70% 62.07% 65.58% 66.52% 

*This schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data. 
 

 SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF 
THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

  

 TRS 2/3   
 Last 10 Fiscal Years* (Dollar amounts in thousands)   

 2015 2016 2017 2018 
District’s proportion of the net pension liability 
(percentage) 

.025190 % .024851 % .023732% .026564% 

District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(amount) 

$212,554 $341,280 $219,031 $119,568 

District’s covered payroll $1,177,880 $1,240,199 $1,301,186 $1,544,698 
District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(amount) as a percentage of its covered payroll 

 
18.05% 

 
27.52% 

 
16.83% 

 
7.74% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 

92.48% 88.72% 93.14% 96.88% 

*This schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data. 
 
The information identified below is the Schedule of District Contributions, by Plan. The 
amounts reported in the Schedules of District Contributions are determined as of the 
district’s fiscal year ending August 31. 
 

 SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS   
 PERS 1   

 Last 10 Fiscal Years* (Dollar amounts in thousands)   
 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Contractually required contribution $123,038 $178,217 $198,521 $193,844 

Contributions in relation to the contractually required 
contributions 

$123,038 $178,217 $198,521 $193,844 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $0 $0 $0 $0 
District’s covered payroll  $3,001,551 $3,767,700 $3,997,865 $3,729,269 

Contribution as a percentage of covered-employee 
payroll 

4.10% 4.73% 4.97% 5.20% 

 

*This schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data. 
 SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS   
 SERS 2/3   
 Last 10 Fiscal Years* (Dollar amounts in thousands)   

 2015 2016 2017 2018 
Contractually required contribution $165,901 $240,523 $256,622 $289,192 
Contributions in relation to the contractually required 
contributions 

$165,901 $240,523 $256,622 $289,192 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $0 $0 $0 $0 
District’s covered payroll  $2,937,432 $3,717,557 $3,871,538 $3,623,557 
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Contribution as a percentage of covered-employee 
payroll 

5.65% 6.47% 6.63% 7.98% 

*This schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data. 
 

 SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS   
 TRS 1   
 Last 10 Fiscal Years* (Dollar amounts in thousands)   

 2015 2016 2017 2018 
Contractually required contribution $56,397 $78,011 $86,480 $115,438 
Contributions in relation to the contractually required 
contributions 

$56,397 $78,011 $86,480 $115,438 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $0 $0 $0 $0 
District’s covered payroll  $1,208,020 $1,271,704 $1,343,011 $1,591,438 
Contribution as a percentage of covered-employee 
payroll 

4.67% 6.13% 6.44% 7.25% 

 *This schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data. 
 
 

 SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS   
 TRS 2/3   
 Last 10 Fiscal Years* (Dollar amounts in thousands)   

 2015 2016 2017 2018 
Contractually required contribution $66,942 $81,115 $87,440 $118,098 
Contributions in relation to the contractually required 
contributions 

$66,942 $81,115 $87,440 $118,098 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $0 $0 $0 $0 
District’s covered payroll  $1,177,880 $1,240,199 $1,301,186 $1,544,698 
Contribution as a percentage of covered-employee 
payroll 

5.68% 6.54% 6.72% 7.65% 

*This schedule is to be built prospectively until it contains ten years of data. 
  

Page 62



 

 
 

 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING AUGUST 31, 2018 

SCHEDULES OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 
 

TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 
Last 10 Fiscal Years * 

 2018 
Service cost $        194,329 
Interest on total OPEB liability           67,984 
Changes in benefit terms - 
Effect of economic/demographic gains or (losses) - 
Effect of assumption changes or inputs (154,544) 
Expected benefit payments (41,770) 
     Net change in total OPEB liability $          65,999 
  
Total OPEB liability, beginning balance 1,763,237 
Total OPEB liability, ending balance $     1,829,236 
  
Covered employee payroll $   6,032,355 
Total OPEB liability as a % of covered employee payroll 30.32% 

 
* Schedules will be built prospectively until 10 years of data has been compiled. 
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Washington State Auditor’s Office Page 66 

ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE 

The State Auditor's Office is established in the state's Constitution and is part of the executive 

branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the citizens of Washington and serves 

four-year terms. 

We work with our audit clients and citizens to achieve our vision of government that works for 

citizens, by helping governments work better, cost less, deliver higher value, and earn greater 

public trust. 

In fulfilling our mission to hold state and local governments accountable for the use of public 

resources, we also hold ourselves accountable by continually improving our audit quality and 

operational efficiency and developing highly engaged and committed employees. 

As an elected agency, the State Auditor's Office has the independence necessary to objectively 

perform audits and investigations. Our audits are designed to comply with professional standards 

as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state, and local laws. 

Our audits look at financial information and compliance with state, federal and local laws on the 

part of all local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of 

higher education. In addition, we conduct performance audits of state agencies and local 

governments as well as fraud, state whistleblower and citizen hotline investigations.  

The results of our work are widely distributed through a variety of reports, which are available on 

our website and through our free, electronic subscription service.  

We take our role as partners in accountability seriously, and provide training and technical 

assistance to governments, and have an extensive quality assurance program. 

Contact information for the State Auditor’s Office 

Public Records requests PublicRecords@sao.wa.gov 

Main telephone (360) 902-0370

Toll-free Citizen Hotline (866) 902-3900

Website www.sao.wa.gov 

http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/FraudProgram.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/Whistleblower.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/CitizenHotline.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/Pages/default.aspx
https://portal.sao.wa.gov/saoportal/Login.aspx
mailto:PublicRecords@sao.wa.gov
file:///C:/Users/cameronl/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/P7TI2Y9E/www.sao.wa.gov
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